
 

 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA NO. 2015–02 

REGULAR MEETING JANUARY 19, 2015 
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 
 

 
 REGULAR MEETING 

 
7:00 P.M. 

 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
 
2. INVOCATION 
 
 
3. FLAG SALUTATION 
 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items indicated by an asterisk 
(*).  Consent Agenda items are not considered separately unless a Council 
Member so requests.  In the event of such a request, the item is returned to the 
General Agenda). 

 
 
5. CITIZENS COMMENTS, oral communications to Council on any item not up for 

Public Hearing.  Testimony is limited to five (5) minutes.  Any person wishing to 
speak needs to complete the register located in the hallway.  Normal standards 
of decorum and courtesy should be observed by all speakers.  Remarks should 
be directed to the City Council as a body rather than to any particular Council 
Member or member of the staff.  In consideration of others, kindly silence all cell 
phone, electronic and messaging devices.  

 
 
6. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
 
7. SPECIAL ORDERS 
 
 
8. MAYOR'S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 1 of 35



 

Agenda No. 2015–02 JANUARY 19, 2015 Page 2 of 2 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 a) Ordinance No. 5963 – An Ordinance Amending FGC Section 2-396 
Regarding the Fact Finding Commission.  Introduced by Council Member 
Staley.  SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING.   

 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

*a) Resolution No. 4656 – A Resolution in Support of the Fairbanks 
Metropolitan Area Transportation System (FMATS) Request for 
Transportation Funding for Fiscal Year 2016.  Introduced by Council 
Member Walley.   

 
 
11. DISCUSSION ITEMS (INFORMATION AND REPORT) 
 

 a) Committee Reports 
 
 
12. COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 
  a) Proposed Corrections to Regular Meeting Minutes of October 6, 2014 

 *b) Memo Concerning City Representative to Borough Assembly Meetings 

 *c) Notice to Council Concerning an Encroachment Permit to ADOT 

 *d) Clay Street Cemetery Commission Meeting Minutes of October 1, 2014 

 *e) Board of Plumber Examiner Meeting Minutes of October 7, 2014 

 *f) Fairbanks Diversity Council Meeting Minutes of October 23, 2014 

 *g) Fairbanks Diversity Council Meeting Minutes of December 9, 2014 

 *h) Appointment to the City Finance Committee 

 *i) Re-appointment to the Building Code Review & Appeals Commission 
 
 
13. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
 
14. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
 
15. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 

AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 2 of 35



 

Ordinance No. 5963 
Page 1 

 

Sponsored by:  Council Member Staley 
Introduced:  January 5, 2015 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 5963 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FGC SECTION 2-396  
REGARDING THE FACT FINDING COMMISSION 

 
 WHEREAS, on February 24, 1992, the Fairbanks City Council established a Fact Finding 
Commission by adopting Ordinance No. 5038; and   
 
 WHEREAS,  the purpose of the Commission is to assist the City Council in the investigation, 
collection, assessment and analysis of any issue referred to the Commission where facts are in dispute or 
are unknown; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Fact Finding Commission has not been called upon to assist the City Council in 
many years, and FGC Section 2-396 has not been amended since it was adopted in 1992; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission is still considered active, so members and terms must be tracked 
and maintained on a regular basis; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it would be beneficial to lengthen members’ terms from two years to five years and 
eliminate the two alternate positions so that appointments will be needed less frequently and the City will 
save money on advertising; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it appears that the Commission may be better served by a cross-section of members 
from both inside and outside the city limits, and it has proven difficult to fill vacancies when all positions 
are limited to City residents. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows:   
 
SECTION 1.  Fairbanks General Code Section 2-396 is hereby amended as follows [new text in 
underlined bold font; deleted text in strikethrough font]: 
 
 Sec. 2-396. – CreatedComposition. 
 

(a) There is created a fact finding commission shall consisting of five members, serving without 
compensation, to be appointed by the mayor and subject to confirmation by the city council. At 
least threeThe members of the commission shall be residents of the city. The membership of the 
commission shall consist of two members who are recognizedexperienced in the fields of law or 
judicial enforcement and three members from the public at large. The initial chairman and vice-
chairman shall be appointedelected by and from the fact finding commission members.the 
mayor subject to confirmation by the city council. Of the five members appointed, one shall be 
appointed to a term expiring December 31, 1992; two shall be appointed to a term expiring 
December 31, 1993; and two shall be appointed to a term expiring December 31, 1994; thereafter, 

AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 3 of 35



 

Ordinance No. 5963 
Page 2 

 

aAppointments shall be for twofive years, except when an interim appointment is necessary to 
complete the term of a member who resigns, dies or is otherwise removed while in office.  
 

(b) The mayor shall also appoint, subject to city council confirmation, two alternates who at the 
election of the chairman shall sit in the place of any absent regular or otherwise assist the 
commission as directed by the chairman. One alternate shall be a member who is recognized in 
the field of law or judicial enforcement, and one alternate shall be a member of the public at 
large. Of the two alternates, one shall be appointed to a term expiring December 31, 1993, and 
one shall be appointed to a term expiring December 31, 1994; thereafter, appointments shall be 
for three years.  

 
SECTION 2.  That the effective date of this Ordinance shall be the ___ day of January 2015.   
 
 
 
 
              
       John Eberhart, City Mayor 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:   
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       _______________________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, MMC, City Clerk   Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 
 

AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 4 of 35



Introduced by:   Council Member Perry Walley 
Date:   January 19, 2015 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 4656 

A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF THE FAIRBANKS METROPOLITAN 
AREA TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM (FMATS) REQUEST FOR 

TRANSPORTATION FUNDING FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016 

WHEREAS, FMATS is the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the Fairbanks 
Urbanized area and therefore receives federal highway funds for transportation planning 
and projects that improve the infrastructure for city residents; and 

WHEREAS, FMATS’ federal transportation funds decreased by 30% in Federal Fiscal 
Year 2013; and 

WHEREAS, FMATS’ has not received state funds in the past two years and this has 
impaired the MPO’s ability to meet pressing transportation needs in the metropolitan 
area; and 

WHEREAS, FMATS will be unable to continue to improve the safety of its roads, 
prepare for economic opportunities, and preserve the existing road system without state 
support; and 

WHEREAS, FMATS has many projects in the cue that are short-funded due to the 
decrease in federal transportation funding to MPOs;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Fairbanks City Council supports 
FMATS in their request for $15 million from the State of Alaska for the development of 
projects in the approved Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that copies of this resolution shall be sent to the 
Honorable Governor Bill Walker and the Interior Delegation. 

PASSED and APPROVED and EFFECTIVE this 19th Day of January 2015. 
 

       ________________________________ 
       JOHN EBERHART, MAYOR 

AYES: 
NAYES: 
ABSET: 
APPROVED: 
 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, MMC, CITY CLERK  Paul J. Ewers, CITY ATTORNEY 

AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 5 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 6 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 7 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 8 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 9 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 10 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 11 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 12 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 13 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 14 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 15 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 16 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 17 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 18 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 19 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 20 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 21 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 22 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 23 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 24 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 25 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 26 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 27 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 28 of 35



ENACTING LEGISLATION FGC 2-118.1

ENACTING LEGISLATION
WEBSITE

http://bit.ly/1sG9Rfd

EMAIL THE COMMISSION
MEMBERS

f inancecommittee@ci.fairbanks.ak.us

BOARD/COMMISSION
CHARACTERISTICS

The Finance Committee shall consist of the City Mayor, all current members of the
City Council and one non-voting public member w ith experience in f inance,
accounting or management appointed by the City Mayor for a three-year term
subject to confirmation by the City Council. Council members w hose term of off ice
is concluded shall be replaced. The City Chief Financial Off icer and Chief of Staff
shall be ex-off icio members of the Committee.

MEETINGS The Finance Committee shall meet at regular times in compliance w ith section 2-
118.

JOINT COMMISSION DETAILS N/A

DETAILS

City of Fairbanks, Alaska

FINANCE COMMITTEE

BOARD DETAILS

OVERVIEW

SIZE  10 Seats

TERM LENGTH  3 Years

TERM LIMIT  N/A

CONTACT

Office of the City Clerk

(907) 459-6771

cityclerk@ci.fairbanks.ak.us

The Finance Committee shall consider all
matters relating to the fiscal operation of
the City and shall make recommendations
regarding fiscal matters to the full City
Council on matters such as budget
requests, ordinances amending the
budget estimate, applications for grants,
and annual audits.

AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 29 of 35



First Name Last Name

Email Address

Street Address Suite or Apt

City State Postal Code

Primary Phone Alternate Phone

Employer Job Title

Submit Date: Jan 14, 2015
Status: on agenda

City of Fairbanks, AK Boards & Commissions

Application Form

Profile

Please note that profile information may be available to the public . 

Mailing Address

Choose your residency status.

Which Boards would you like to apply for?

Finance Committee

Interests & Experiences

Please tell us about yourself and why you want to serve.

Celeste Sisto

Fairbanks AK 99701

City Resident

Wells Fargo Bank Busiiness Relationship Manager

AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 30 of 35



Upload a Resume

Why are you interested in serving on a board or commission? What life experience can you
contribute to the benefit of the board or commission?

I've lived in Fairbanks for over seven years, and I am interested in contributing to this community that has
become my home. I currently am employed as a Business Banking Relationship Manager at Wells Fargo,
and have an extensive backgrond in banking, accounting, securites, and have also spent time working in the
tourism industry in Alaska. I feel that my skill set and knowledge of the Fairbanks community would make me
an asset as a memeber of the finance commitee

Brief Personal Biography (or attach resume):

WORK EXPERIENCE Business Relationship Manager/Private Banker Wells Fargo Bank - Fairbanks, AK -
June 2010 to Present Responsibilities Serve as the primary point of contact to the highest net worth clients, in
Fairbanks, AK. Maintain and grow long term client relationships. Provide banking services including
consumer lending, small business lending, and deposit account relationships. Work closely with internal bank
partners to assist clients with needs such as business banking, merchant services, mortgage lending, and
wealth management. Developed network of local centers of influence in the Fairbanks, AK market area. Skills
Used Loan origination Financial planning Long term client relationship management Wealth Management
Maintaining Series 7, 66, and 31 licenses with FINRA, and AK state Life and Health Licenses Financial
Advisor Morgan Stanley - Fairbanks, AK - September 2008 to May 2010 Responsibilities Assisted clients in
all aspects of financial planning needs. Provided financial advice on an individual basis for clients based
upon personalized needs assessment. Knowledgeable and current on a myriad of investment solutions for
potential client recommendations. Skills Used Market analysis Portfolio management New business
development Obtained Series 7, 66, and 31 licenses through Finra, and AK state Life and Health licenses.
Assistant Transportation Manager Princess Tours - Fairbanks, AK - May 2005 to September 2008
Responsibilities Managed day to day operations of transportation for tourism company. Responsible for
between seasonal 30-60 employees. Account Executive Entrepreneur Growth Capital - New York, NY - June
2004 to May 2005 Responsibilities Assisted clients in both factoring and asset based lending portfolios.
Utilized credit analysis skills to perform account reviews, and advise on credit decisions. Worked with clients
with annual gross business revenues between $1MM and $10MM. Skills Used Obtained extensive
knowledge of factoring and asset based lending. Commercial Credit Analysis Business Development
Cultivating Centers of Influence Commercial Lender Ocean First Bank - Toms River, NJ - October 2001 to
July 2004 Responsibilities Managed portfolio of commercial banking clients, including underwriting, account
servicing, and new business development. Responsible for underwriting and conducting due diligence for
credit requests from $1MM-$10MM, for businesses with annual gross revenues between $2MM and $15MM.
Extensive knowledge of commecial credit products and services offered by internal bank partners. Skills
Used Completed formal credit analyst training program Cash flow analysis Commercial credit underwriting
Financial statement analysis Portfolio management New business development EDUCATION BA in History
Rutgers University - New Brunswick, NJ 1996 to 2001 SKILLS Client Relationship Management, Commercial
Lending, Wealth Management, Financial Planning, Investments, Securities, Credit Analysis, Consumer
Lending

Professional Licenses/Training:

FINRA Series 7, 66,and 31 State of Alaska insurance licenses Completeion of formal commercial banking
credit training program BA in History Rutgers University, 2001

AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 31 of 35



AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 32 of 35



ENACTING LEGISLATION FGC 2-481 through 2-484

ENACTING LEGISLATION
WEBSITE

http://bit.ly/1sG9Rfd

EMAIL THE COMMISSION
MEMBERS

buildingcodereview &appealscommission@ci.fairbanks.ak.us

BOARD/COMMISSION
CHARACTERISTICS

The Building Code Review  and Appeals Commission consists of nine members
appointed by the Mayor, subject to confirmation by the City Council, and each
member shall serve a f ive-year term; all terms expire on December 31st of the f if th
year. The members of the Commission must reside or w ork, and have experience
w ith the design or construction of structures w ithin the City. The Building Off icial
shall be an ex off icio member of the Commission, w ho may provide information and
recommendations but may not vote on any matter. Tw o alternate members are
appointed by the Mayor, subject to City Council confirmation, to serve in the place
of any absent member or otherw ise assist the Commission as directed by the
chairman.

MEETINGS Meetings of the Building Code Review  and Appeals Commission are called w hen
the subject matter w arrants. The chairman is authorized to call meetings, or a
majority of the members may require that a meeting be called. All meetings shall be
open to the public, except that closed meetings may be held as provided by law. A
majority (f ive members) of the commission shall constitute a quorum and a majority
vote of those present and voting shall be necessary to carry any question.
Minutes shall be kept as a permanent record of all meetings and shall be f iled in the
Off ice of the City Clerk.

JOINT COMMISSION DETAILS N/A

DETAILS

City of Fairbanks, Alaska

BUILDING CODE REVIEW & APPEALS COMMISSION

BOARD DETAILS

OVERVIEW

SIZE  12 Seats

TERM LENGTH  5 Years

TERM LIMIT  N/A

CONTACT

Office of the City Clerk

(907) 459-6771

cityclerk@ci.fairbanks.ak.us

The purpose of the Building Code Review and Appeals
Commission is: 1) To review the building, electrical,
plumbing, fire prevention, residential, mechanical, fuel gas
and abatement codes and related provisions of the
Fairbanks Code of Ordinances and make recommendations
regarding building construction and housing codes adopted
by the City, 2) To investigate and review all operations of the
building department of the City, to submit recommendations
on policy to the City Council, and to make recommendations
on administration to the mayor. • To hear and determine in the
first instance all appeals from final staff decisions relating to
building construction within the City including the Uniform
Code for the Abatement of Dangerous Buildings. Any
decision of the board may be appealed to the superior court
in accordance with the appellate rules of the state court
system.

AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 33 of 35



First Name Last Name

Email Address

Street Address Suite or Apt

City State Postal Code

Primary Phone Alternate Phone

Employer Job Title

Submit Date: Jan 14, 2015
Status: on agenda

City of Fairbanks, AK Boards & Commissions

Application Form

Profile

Please note that profile information may be available to the public . 

Mailing Address

Choose your residency status.

Which Boards would you like to apply for?

Building Code Review & Appeals Commission

Interests & Experiences

Please tell us about yourself and why you want to serve.

William Hrinko

Fairbanks AK 99709

Non-Resident

PDC Inc Engineers Structural Engineer

AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 34 of 35



Upload a Resume

Why are you interested in serving on a board or commission? What life experience can you
contribute to the benefit of the board or commission?

*emailed intent for re-applying to City Clerk

Brief Personal Biography (or attach resume):

Joined PDC in 1996, is a key project structural engineer; develops designs using steel, concrete, wood, and
masonry.

Professional Licenses/Training:

Bill Hrinko, PE, Structural Engineer, Graduated from the University of Cincinnati in 1990 with a Bachelor of
Science Degree in Civil Engineering; received Masters of Science Degree from the University of Cincinnati
in 1992.

AGENDA PACKET - January 19, 2015 Page 35 of 35


	AGENDA - January 19, 2015
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Ordinance No. 5963

	NEW BUSINESS
	Resolution No. 4656

	COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL
	Proposed Correction to 10/06/14  Meeting Minutes 
	City Rep to Borough Meetings
	ADOT Encroachment permit
	Clay Street Cemetery 10/01/14 Minutes
	Board of Plumber Examiner 10/07/14 Minutes
	Diversity Council 10/23/14 Minutes
	Diversity Council 12/09/14 Minutes
	Appointment to Finance Committee
	Reappointment to Building Code Review & Appeals Commission




